### **DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE**

At a meeting of the Development Management Committee on Monday, 2 October 2023 at the Civic Suite. Town Hall. Runcorn

Present: Councillors S. Hill (Chair), Leck (Vice-Chair), Bevan, Davidson, C. Loftus, Philbin, Polhill, Thompson and Woolfall

Apologies for Absence: Councillors Carlin and C. Plumpton Walsh

Absence declared on Council business: None

Officers present: A. Jones, T. Gibbs, A. Plant, L. Wilson-Lagan, I. Dignall and L. Crampton

Also in attendance: Councillor Ball and one member of the press

# ITEMS DEALT WITH UNDER DUTIES EXERCISABLE BY THE COMMITTEE

Action

#### DEV22 MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 4 September 2023, having been circulated, were taken as read and signed as a correct record.

DEV23 PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE

The Committee considered the following applications for planning permission and, in accordance with its powers and duties, made the decisions described below.

DEV24 23/00234/FUL - PROPOSED RE FENESTRATION OF EXISTING FACADE TO MAIN COLLEGE BUILDING AND NEW FOUR STOREY BUILDING HOUSING ENGINEERING WORKSHOPS AND CLASSROOMS, PLUS NEW SUBSTATION AND SWITCH ROOM TO WEST OF THE SITE AT RIVERSIDE COLLEGE, KINGSWAY, WIDNES

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined in the report together with background information in respect of the site.

The application was placed in List A of the published AB Update List. It was noted that there were no outstanding objections from consultees and no objections from Ward Councillors.

The Committee agreed that the application be approved.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to conditions relating to the following:

- 1. Standard time limits condition:
- 2. Plans condition listing approved drawings (GR1);
- 3. External facing materials (GR1);
- 4. Site Waste Management Plan (WM8);
- 5. Post clearance investigation, assessment and if required, remediation (HE8);
- 6. Asbestos management plan (HE8);
- 7. Construction Environmental Management Plan (HE1, HE9);
- 8. Travel plan (CS(R)15);
- 9. Parking and servicing provision (C1 and C2);
- Sustainable development and climate change scheme (CS(R)19);
- 11.SuDS including implementation, maintenance and management of a SuDS scheme in accordance with details to be submitted and verification report (HE9);
- 12. Details of disabled and EV spaces (C2);
- 13. Structural details of all retaining walls within 4m of the highway (C1); and
- 14. Boundary treatment details (GR1).

DEV25 23/00236/FUL - PROPOSED DEMOLITION OF EXISTING CHANGING ROOMS AND CONSTRUCTION OF TWO STOREY EXTENSION WITHIN THE FOOTPRINT OF THE MAIN COLLEGE BUILDING TO PROVIDE A NEW MUSIC HUB WITH MUSIC PRACTICE ROOMS, BAND ROOMS AND TWO CLASSROOMS. CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW **TEACHING** BLOCK **PROVIDING** BUILD 3 CLASSROOMS, LABORATORY AND 6 CLASSROOMS, WITH STAFF AND SANITARY FACILITIES. ASSOCIATED COVERED LANDSCAPING AND WALKWAY RIVERSIDE COLLEGE, CRONTON LANE, WIDNES

The consultation procedure undertaken was outlined in the report together with background information in respect of the site.

Officers advised of representations made by Ward Councillors on behalf of their constituents in relation to

highways and parking. Following meetings with Planning and Highways, the College agreed to some innovative updates which would be secured by condition, relating to permits, penalties, free bus passes and an automatic barrier system.

The Committee was addressed by Councillor Ball, a local Birchfield Ward Councillor, who spoke on behalf of local residents. She commented that local residents had already suffered disruption from recent construction at the site and they did not want a repeat of this. She had received daily complaints from residents during this time relating to parking issues in the surrounding area, some of which included Police involvement. She said that residents did not object in principle to the College making improvements and educational recognised that they provided good opportunities for the young people of Halton. She outlined some concerns residents made during the consultation period as follows:

- The construction period should not impede existing parking like it did previously;
- The College's Travel Plan needs updating;
- The Traffic Plan should include student travel monitoring methods;
- The time taken to exit the existing car park was unacceptable; a 'left turn only' enforcement was needed;
- Can the College consider staggering the finish times of lessons to help with the volume of students exiting the site at the same time:
- Traffic and highways impacts on surrounding areas should be considered;
- If student numbers increased in the future, so will the traffic problems; and
- Parking in residential streets.

Members recognised the existing traffic and highways issues raised by Councillor Ball as these were well documented. They also supported the College with its proposal to enhance its educational establishment and provide a better environment for students in the Borough. The Committee discussed possible options to alleviate issues relating to traffic disruption and congestion and one Member proposed a deferral until such time as the Travel Plan was submitted.

Officers advised that the College had cooperated fully with the Council and took the matters raised seriously. They were developing a Travel Plan which would be ready by

2024 and would include: monitoring of where students travelled from; disability parking facilities; electric vehicle charging points; free bus pass system and provision of cycling facilities. It was felt that a deferral was not needed.

In response to comments made, Officers suggested that the requirement for a Construction Management Plan could be added to the list of conditions, which would control the construction phase. Also, an updated Travel Plan could be requested prior to commencement on site, with a further update requested in 2024, prior to occupation of the site. The Committee agreed that these amendments would provide some reassurance for residents and Ward Councillors and were preferable to a deferral.

The suggested amendments to the conditions were moved and seconded and the Committee voted to approve the application, subject to the addition of these.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved subject to the following conditions, which include the inclusion of the additional two conditions mentioned above:

- 1. Standard time limits condition;
- 2. Plans condition listing approved drawings (GR1);
- 3. External facing materials (GR1);
- 4. Hours of construction (GR2);
- 5. Electric vehicle charging point scheme (CS(R)19);
- 6. Travel Plan prior to commencement of development (CS(R)15);
- 7. Parking and servicing provision (C1 and C2);
- 8. Sustainable development and climate change scheme (CS(R)19);
- SuDS including implementation, maintenance and management of a SuDS scheme in accordance with details to be submitted and verification report (HE9);
- 10. Details of disabled and EV spaces (C2);
- 11. Boundary treatment details (GR1); and
- 12. Construction Management Plan.

## DEV26 MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

It was noted that the following appeal had been received / was in progress:

#### 22/00019/PLD

Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for a proposed use of development for the installation of a solar farm (ground mounted solar photovoltaic panels) at

Liverpool John Lennon Airport, on land bounded by Dungeon Lane, Hale Road and Baileys Lane, to the east of Liverpool John Lennon Airport, Speke, Liverpool, L24 1YD.

Meeting ended at 7.10 p.m.